In accordance with Rule 18.7 of the Insolvency (England & Wales) Rules 2016 and Sections 92A, 104A and 192 of the Insolvency Act 1986.

# LIQ03 Notice of progress report in voluntary winding up



For further information, please refer to our guidance at www.gov.uk/companieshouse

1	Company details	
Company number		→ Filling in this form  Please complete in typescript or in
Company name in full		bold black capitals.
2	Liquidator's name	
Full forename(s)		
Surname		
3	Liquidator's address	
Building name/number		
Street		
Post town		
County/Region		
Postcode		
Country		
4	Liquidator's name •	·
Full forename(s)		Other liquidator Use this section to tell us about
Surname		another liquidator.
5	Liquidator's address 🛭	·
Building name/number		② Other liquidator
Street		Use this section to tell us about another liquidator.
Post town		
County/Region		
Postcode		
 Country		

LIQ03 Notice of progress report in voluntary winding up

6	Pei	Period of progress report										
From date	d	d	m	m	у	У	У	у				
To date	d	d	m	m	У	у	у	у				
7	Pro	gress	report			·	·					
	☐ The progress report is attached											
8	Sig	ın and	date									
Liquidator's signature	Sign	nature /	23	il_	-					×		
Signature date	d	d	m	m	у	у	у	у				

#### LIQ03

Notice of progress report in voluntary winding up

#### **Presenter information**

You do not have to give any contact information, but if you do it will help Companies House if there is a query on the form. The contact information you give will be visible to searchers of the public record.

Contact name				
Company name				
Address				
Post town				
County/Region				
Postcode	 	 	 	 
Postcode				
Country				
DX				
Telephone				

#### 1

#### Checklist

We may return forms completed incorrectly or with information missing.

Please make sure you have remembered the following:

- ☐ The company name and number match the information held on the public Register.
- ☐ You have attached the required documents.
- $\square$  You have signed the form.

#### Important information

All information on this form will appear on the public record.

#### **☑** Where to send

You may return this form to any Companies House address, however for expediency we advise you to return it to the address below:

The Registrar of Companies, Companies House, Crown Way, Cardiff, Wales, CF14 3UZ. DX 33050 Cardiff.

#### **7** Further information

For further information please see the guidance notes on the website at www.gov.uk/companieshouse or email enquiries@companieshouse.gov.uk

This form is available in an alternative format. Please visit the forms page on the website at www.gov.uk/companieshouse

## Joint Liquidators' Progress Report from 28 March 2022 to 27 March 2023

12 May 2023

Parkridge Holdings Limited - in Creditors' Voluntary Liquidation



## Table of contents

Abbreviations and definitions	2
Key messages	4
Why we've sent you this report	4
How much creditors have received	4
What you need to do	4
Overview of what we've done to date	5
Outcome for creditors	6
Secured creditors	6
Preferential creditors (mainly employees)	6
Unsecured creditors	6
Progress since we last reported	7
Realisation of assets	7
Intercompany claims and dividends received	7
Statutory and compliance	7
Investigations and actions	8
Our receipts and payments account	8
Our expenses	8
Our fees	8
Creditors' rights	8
What we still need to do	8
Next report	8
Appendix A: Receipts and payments	11
Appendix B: Expenses	12
Appendix C: Remuneration update	14
Our hours and average rates	14
Our time charging policy and hourly rates	14
Payments to associates	16
Our work in the period	16
Our previous work	16
Our future work	18
Our relationships	19
Details of subcontracted work	19
Legal and other professional firms	19
Appendix D: Other information	20

### Abbreviations and definitions

The following table shows the abbreviations and insolvency terms that may be used in this report:

Abbreviation or definition	Meaning
Company	Parkridge Holdings Limited
Liquidators, we or our	Robert Jonathan Hunt and David Matthew Hammond (to 8 November 2016) David Robert Baxendale and David Matthew Hammond (from 8 November 2016 to date)
Firm	PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
IR16	Insolvency (England and Wales) Rules 2016
IA86	Insolvency Act 1986
Dickens Heath	Dickens Heath Development Company Limited - in liquidation
CVL, liquidation	Creditors' voluntary liquidation
HMRC	HM Revenue and Customs
Prescribed part	The amount set aside for unsecured creditors from floating charge funds in accordance with Section 176A IA86 and the Insolvency Act 1986 (Prescribed Part) Order 2003
Secured creditors	Creditors with security in respect of their debt, in accordance with Section 248 IA86
Preferential creditors	Generally, claims for unpaid wages earned in the four months before the insolvency up to £800, holiday pay and unpaid pension contributions in certain circumstances
Prologis	Prologic Germany X P.V
RBS	Royal Bank of Scotland
Unsecured creditors	Creditors who are neither secured nor preferential

This report has been prepared by David Robert Baxendale and David Matthew Hammond as Joint Liquidators of the Company, solely to comply with the Joint Liquidators' statutory duty to report to creditors under IR16 on the progress of the liquidation, and for no other purpose. It is not suitable to be relied upon by any other person, or for any other purpose, or in any other context.

This report has not been prepared in contemplation of it being used, and it is not suitable to be used, to inform any investment decision in relation to the debt of or any financial investment in the Company.

Any estimated outcomes for creditors included in this report are illustrative only and cannot be relied upon as guidance as to the actual outcome for creditors.

Any persons choosing to rely on this report for any purpose or in any context other than under IR16 do so at their own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Joint Liquidators do not assume any liability in respect of this report to any such person.

Please note you should read this report in conjunction with the Joint Liquidators' previous reports issued to the Company's creditors, which can be found at <a href="https://www.pwc.co.uk/parkridge">www.pwc.co.uk/parkridge</a>. Unless stated otherwise, all amounts in this report and appendices are stated net of VAT.

David Robert Baxendale and David Matthew Hammond have been appointed as Joint Liquidators of the Company. Both are licensed in the United Kingdom to act as insolvency practitioners by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. The Joint Liquidators are bound by the Insolvency Code of Ethics which can be found at: https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/insolvency-practitioner-code-of-ethics

The Joint Liquidators may act as controllers of personal data as defined by UK data protection law depending upon the specific processing activities undertaken. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP may act as a processor on the instructions of the Joint Liquidators.

Personal data will be kept secure and processed only for matters relating to the Joint Liquidators' appointment. Further details are available in the privacy statement on the PwC.co.uk website or by contacting the Joint Liquidators.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England with registered number OC303525. The registered office of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP is 1 Embankment Place, London WC2N 6RH. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority for designated investment business.

## Key messages

### Why we've sent you this report

I'm writing to update you on the progress of the liquidation of Parkridge Holdings Limited in the 12 months since our last report dated 20 May 2022.

You can still view our earlier reports on our website at www.pwc.co.uk/parkridge.

#### How much creditors have received

The following table shows the actual outcome for creditors:

Class of creditor	Actually Paid (p in £)
Preferential creditors	100
Unsecured creditors	1.91

#### What you need to do

This report is for your information and you don't need to do anything.

## Overview of what we've done to date

As previously reported, Robert Jonathan Hunt and David Matthew Hammond of PwC were appointed joint administrators of the Company on 24 August 2011. The administration ended on 28 March 2012 when the Company went into CVL and the administrators were appointed as liquidators. David Robert Baxendale subsequently replaced Robert Jonathan Hunt on 8 November 2016 as joint liquidator.

When the Company entered into liquidation, the key matters for the Liquidators to deal with were as follows:

- The receipt of a dividend due from an associated company in liquidation (Dickens Heath), which was dependent on property sales within that company; and
- The recovery of additional funds due from other related companies, which were also in liquidation. These were also dependent on the level of realisations in those companies.

This is our eleventh progress report. You may also wish to refer to our previous reports which can be found at <a href="https://www.pwc.co.uk/parkridge">www.pwc.co.uk/parkridge</a>. As explained in those reports, we have realised dividends from several other insolvent subsidiaries, as follows:

- £14,543 from Parkridge Coalville Limited;
- £50,327 from Parkridge (Shires Gateway) Limited;
- £46,423 from Parkridge Retail Limited;
- £147,914 from Parkridge Droitwich Limited; and
- £452,875 from Dickens Heath.

We remain in office in order to receive a final dividend from Dickens Heath. An update on this matter is given later.

### Outcome for creditors

#### Secured creditors

The Company has two secured creditors, as shown below:

Secured creditor	Initial debt*	Security
RBS	£15m	First ranking fixed and floating charge
Prologis	£80m	Second ranking fixed and floating charge

<sup>\*</sup>Debt at the commencement of the preceding administration appointment

As previously reported, some £200,000 was distributed to RBS during the course of the administration. A further £450,000 has been distributed during the course of the liquidation, as shown on the enclosed receipts and payments account.

Additionally, Prologis has recovered c.£13m directly from an inter-company debtor.

We anticipate that both secured creditors will suffer a shortfall under their security, the level of which is dependent on the realisation of the dividend due from Dickens Heath.

#### Preferential creditors (mainly employees)

Preferential creditors were paid in full earlier in the liquidation. Total claims amounted to £23,844.80.

#### Unsecured creditors

Dividends become available for unsecured creditors when there are sufficient funds (after costs of the liquidation) to pay the secured and preferential creditors in full, with an amount left over. In certain circumstances, part of the amount available for secured creditors may be ring-fenced for the benefit of unsecured creditors. This prescribed part is paid out of 'net property', which is floating charge realisations after costs, and after paying – or setting aside enough to pay – preferential creditors in full. But it only has to be made available where the floating charge was created on or after 15 September 2003.

The prescribed part applies in this case as there is a floating charge created after 15 September 2003.

The amount of the prescribed part is:

- 50% of net property up to £10,000;
- 20% of net property above £10,000; but
- Subject to a maximum of £600,000.

Unsecured creditors have benefited from the maximum prescribed part of £600,000. After costs (as shown on the enclosed receipts and payments account) a first and final dividend of 1.91 pence in the pound was paid on 28 January 2014 to those creditors whose claims had been admitted.

No further distributions are expected for unsecured creditors, as any further realisations will not repay the secured creditors in full.

## Progress since we last reported

#### Realisation of assets

The following table shows the current position on asset realisations and other recoveries in the liquidation.

Assets		Estimated to realise per the statement of affairs* (£)
Intangible assets	13.72	-
Funds from the administration	940,085.11	-
Intercompany debtors	712,082.19	-
Interest received gross	4,406.29	-
Pre-appointment VAT refund	41,752.83	-
Reimbursement of costs paid during the administration	1,013.27	-
Total	1,699,353.41	-

<sup>\*</sup>No statement of affairs was provided in the liquidation. It was provided at the start of the administration.

#### Intercompany claims and dividends received

We have previously reported on the various outstanding debts that were due to the Company from several associated companies. We explained that a dividend was expected from Dickens Heath, however we were unsure on the timing as it was dependent upon property sales. We have previously received an interim dividend of £452,875 from Dickens Heath and are still awaiting a final dividend from them.

In our last report, we advised that the timing of this final dividend is uncertain as it is dependent on a final sale of a ground rent portfolio. Whilst the majority of the portfolio was sold in December 2020, and the remaining properties sold in February 2022, there were some outstanding matters that needed to be resolved before Dickens Heath could pay a further dividend to the unsecured creditors, namely:

- Discharging final costs associated with the sale of the remaining properties:
- Dealing with communal land attached to the ground rent portfolio; and
- Obtaining tax clearance from HMRC.

During the period of this report, we have been advised that tax clearance has been issued by HMRC, however the liquidators of Dickens Heath are still dealing with the communal land attached to the ground rent portfolio and, as such, they cannot discharge the final costs associated with the portfolio.

However, the liquidators of Dickens Heath are hopeful that they will be in a position to pay a further dividend before the end of 2023.

Total intercompany dividends received to date are £2,014,880.55 of which £712,082.19 has been received whilst the Company has been in liquidation. By comparison, the directors' statement of affairs (in the administration) estimated realisations from intercompany accounts would be in the region of £1.5 million.

We do not expect to receive any further dividends other than the final dividend from Dickens Heath.

#### Statutory and compliance

The Company was deregistered for VAT on 1 September 2012. Any additional amounts of VAT paid since deregistration are reclaimed periodically.

Annual corporation tax returns continue to be prepared and submitted to HMRC, the latest of which was for the period 28 March 2021 to 27 March 2022 which was submitted on 14 April 2022. We are in the process of preparing our corporation tax return for the year ended 27 March 2023.

#### Investigations and actions

Nothing has come to our attention during the period under review to suggest that we need to do any more work in line with our duties under the Company Directors' Disqualification Act 1986 and Statement of Insolvency Practice No.2.

#### Our receipts and payments account

We set out in Appendix A an account of our receipts and payments in the liquidation from 28 March 2022 to 27 March 2023.

#### Our expenses

We set out in Appendix B a statement of the expenses we've incurred to the date covered by this report and an estimate of our future expenses.

The statement excludes any potential tax liabilities that we may need to pay as a liquidation expense in due course because amounts due will depend on the position at the end of the tax accounting period.

#### Our fees

We set out in Appendix C an update on our fees, expenses and other related matters.

#### Creditors' rights

Creditors have the right to ask for more information within 21 days of receiving this report as set out in Rule 18.9 IR16. Any request must be in writing. Creditors can also challenge our fees and expenses within eight weeks of receiving this report as set out in Rule 18.34 IR16. This information can also be found in the guide to fees at:

https://www.icaew.com/-/media/corporate/files/technical/insolvency/creditors-guides/2021/liquidations-creditor-fee-guide-1-april-2021.ashx?la=en

We have also provided the guide that was applicable for the appointment of the Company from 1 November 2011 to 30 September 2015:

http://www.icaew.com/-/media/corporate/files/technical/insolvency/creditors-guides/creditors-guide-liquidators-fees-final.ashx?la=en

You can also get a copy free of charge by telephoning Matthew Duckworth on 0113 289 4000.

#### What we still need to do

As reported above, we remain in office in order to receive the final dividend due to the Company from Dickens Heath. The liquidation can then be brought to an end, which will include a final distribution to RBS, discharging costs of the liquidation and complying with our final obligations in relation to the Company's VAT and tax affairs.

#### Next report

We expect to send our next report to creditors at the end of the liquidation or in about 12 months, whichever is the sooner

If you've got any questions, please get in touch with Matthew Duckworth on 0113 289 4000.

Yours faithfully

David Baxendale

#### Joint Liquidator

David Robert Baxendale and David Matthew Hammond have been appointed as joint liquidators of the Company. Both are licensed in the United Kingdom to act as an Insolvency Practitioner by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. The joint liquidators are bound by the Insolvency Code of Ethics which can be found at: <a href="https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/insolvency-practitioner-code-of-ethics">https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/insolvency-practitioner-code-of-ethics</a>.

The joint liquidators may act as Data Controllers of personal data as defined by UK data protection law depending upon the specific processing activities undertaken. PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP may act as a processor on the instructions of the joint liquidators. Personal data will be kept secure and processed only for matters relating to the joint liquidators' appointment. Further details are available in the privacy statement on the PwC.co.uk website or by contacting the joint liquidators.

## **Appendices**

## Appendix A: Receipts and payments

Directors' statement of affairs (£)		28 March 2012 to 27 March 2022 (£)	28 March 2022 to 27 March 2023 (£)	Total to 27 March 2023 (£)
	Assets subject to fixed charges			
	Receipts			
-	None	-	-	-
_		0.00	0.00	0.00
		0.00	0.00	0.00
	Assets subject to floating charge			
	Receipts			
-	Pre-appointment VAT refund	41,752.83	-	41,752.83
-	Intangible assets	1372	-	13:72
-	Funds from the administration	940,08511		940,08511
-	Intercompanydebtors	712,082.19	-	712,082.19
-	Interest received gross	4,406,29	72303	5129,32
-	Reimbursement of costs paid during the administration	1,01327	-	1,013.27
-		1,699,353.41	723.03	1,700,076.44
	Payments			
-	Storage costs	1,216.82	-	1,216.82
-	Corporation Tax / Incorre Tax	179,67	-	179,67
-	Office holders' fees - administration (time cost basis)	200,000.00	-	200,000.00
-	Office holders' expenses - administration	1,302.04	-	1,302.04
-	Office holders' fees for payment of prescribed part dividend (time cost basis)	12,508.00	-	12,508.00
-	Office holders' expenses for payment of prescribed part dividend	12.00	-	12.00
-	Office holders' fees - liquidation (time cost basis)	150,000.00	-	150,000.00
-	Statutoryadvertising	222.62		222.62
-	Legal fees & expenses	25,194.99	-	25,194,99
-	Pre-administration fees	50,000.00	-	50,000.00
-	Pre-administration expenses	824.83	-	82483
-	Bank charges	94.26	-	94.26
-	Distribution to preferential creditors - National Insurance Fund (100 p in the £, paid 14 January 2013)	3.535.12	-	3.53512
-	Distribution to preferential creditors - Employees (100p in the £, paid 14 January 2013)	20,309.68	-	20,309.68
	Distribution to secured creditor	450,000.00	-	450,000.00
-	Prescribed part distribution to unsecured creditors (1.9 pence in the £, paid 28 January 2014)	582,527.99	-	.582,527,99
-		1,497,928.02	-	1,497,928.02
_	Net balance	201,425.39	723.03	202,148.42
			/=3.03	
	Net VAT (receivable)/payable	-	-	-
_	Balance in hand (deposited in interest bearing account)	201,425.39	723.03	202,148.42

#### Notes to the R&P

- 1. Amounts shown exclude VAT.
- 2. As explained further in Appendix C, our fees are based on time costs basis. The receipts and payments account shows the amount paid in the period (nil) and total to date.
- 3. There have been no payments made to us, our firm or our associates other than from the insolvent estate as shown in the receipts and payments account provided above.
- 4. Included within our expenses is (nil) paid in the period and £216.61 paid in total, in relation to 'Category 2' expenses in accordance with the policy explained in Appendix B.
- 5. On 14 January 2013, we paid a dividend to the preferential creditors at a rate of 100 pence in the £.
- 6. On 28 January 2014, we paid a dividend to the unsecured creditors at a rate of 1.91 pence in the £.
- 7. Funds are held in an interest bearing account.

## Appendix B: Expenses

Expenses are amounts properly payable by us as liquidators from the estate, but excludes our fees and distributions to creditors.

These include disbursements which are expenses met by and reimbursed to an office holder in connection with an insolvency appointment.

Expenses fall into two categories:

SIP9 definition
Payments to persons providing the service to which the expense relates who are not an associate of the office holder.
Payments to our firm or our associates or which have an element of shared costs (for example, photocopying and mileage disbursements, or costs shared between different insolvent estates).

We don't need approval from creditors to draw Category 1 expenses as these have all been provided by third parties but we do need approval to draw Category 2 expenses. The body of creditors who approve our fees (in this case the secured and preferential creditors) also has the responsibility for agreeing the basis for payment of Category 2 expenses.

The rate for services provided by the Liquidators' own firm (Category 2 expenses) may periodically rise (for example to cover annual inflationary cost increases) over the period of the liquidation. All other disbursements to be charged at cost.

The following table provides a breakdown of the Category 2 expenses incurred in the period, together with details of the Category 1 expenses that have been incurred as disbursements by PwC and will be recharged to the case

Category	Cost incurred by	Policy	Costs incurred (£)
2	PwC	Photocopying - at 10 pence per sheet copied, only charged for circulars to creditors and other bulk copying.	-
2	PwC	Mileage - For petrol, diesel and hybrid: at a maximum of 71 pence per mile (up to 2,000cc) or 93 pence per mile (over 2,000cc);	-
1	PwC	Storage	214.28
Total			214.28

The expense policy set out above has been approved by the secured and preferential creditors.

The table below provides details of the expenses incurred in the liquidation:

	Total expenses incurred brought forward from 28 March 2022	Expenses in curred in this period	Total expenses to 27 March 2023	Total expenses paid to 27 March 2023	Expenses outstanding at 27 March 2023	Estimated future expenses	Anticipa ted total expenses
	(£)	(£)	(£)	(£)	(£)	(£)	(£)
Storage costs	1,216.82	-	1,216.82	(1,216.82)	-	-	1,216.82
Office holder's expenses - administration	1,333.98	-	1,333.98	(1,302.04)	31.94	-	1,333.98
Office holder's expenses for payment of prescribed part dividend	12.00	-	12.00	(12.00)	-	-	12.00
Office holder's expenses - liquidation	1,973.54	214.28	2,187.82	-	2,187.82	250.00	2,437.82
Statutory advertising	222.62	-	222.62	(222.62)	-	-	222.62
Legal fees & expenses	25,194.99	-	25,194.99	(25,194.99)	-	-	25,194.99
Pre-administration fees	50,000.00	-	50,000.00	(50,000.00)	-	-	50,000.00
Pre-administration expenses	824.83	-	824.83	(824.83)	-	-	824.83
Bank charges	94.26	-	94.26	(94.26)	-	-	94.26
	80,873.04	214.28	81,087.32	(78,867.56)	2,219.76	250.00	81,337.32

The table also excludes any potential tax liabilities that we may need to pay as a liquidation expense because amounts becoming due will depend on the position at the end of the tax accounting period.

The table should be read in conjunction with the receipts and payments account at Appendix A, which shows expenses actually paid during the period and the total paid to date.

### Appendix C: Remuneration update

During the administration, the secured and preferential creditors fixed the basis of the administrators' fees by reference to time properly given by the administrators and their staff in dealing with the administration.

The fee basis agreed in the administration continues to apply in the liquidation. This means that our fees as liquidators will be calculated by reference to time properly given by the liquidators and their staff in dealing with the liquidation.

The time cost charges incurred in the period covered by this report are £15,283.25. This amount does not necessarily reflect how much we will eventually draw as fees for this period.

We set out later in this Appendix details of our work to date, anticipated future work, expenses, subcontracted work and payments to associates.

#### Our hours and average rates

	Partner	Senior Manager	Manager	Senior Associate	Associate/ Other	Hours	Total Cost (£)	Average Hourly Cost (£)
Accounting and Treasury			0.25	1.30	2.50	4.05	1,638.00	404.44
Statutory and Compliance	0.55	1.85	6.50	10.30		19.20	10,805.50	562.79
Strategy and Planning			0.80	0.50		1.30	841.50	647.31
Tax and VAT		0.90	0.20	1.05	1.00	3.15	1,998.25	634.37
Grand Total	0.55	2.75	7.75	13.15	3.50	27.70	15,283.25	551.74
Brought forward at 27 March 2022						730.05	212,540.25	291.13
Total to 27 March 2023						757.75	227,823.50	300.66

#### Our time charging policy and hourly rates

We and our team charge our time for the work we need to do in the liquidation. We delegate tasks to suitable grades of staff, taking into account their experience and any specialist knowledge that is needed and we supervise them properly to maximise the cost effectiveness of the work done. Anything complex or important matters of exceptional responsibility are handled by our senior staff or us.

All of our staff who work on the liquidation (including our cashiers, support and secretarial staff) charge time directly to the case and are included in any analysis of time charged. Each grade of staff has an hourly charge out rate which is reviewed from time to time. For the avoidance of doubt, work carried out by our cashiers, support and secretarial staff is charged on a time costs basis and is included in the analysis of hourly rates charged by partners or other staff members. Time is charged in three minute units (i.e. 0.05 units). We don't charge general or overhead costs.

We set out below the maximum charge-out rates per hour for the grades of our staff who already or who are likely to work on the liquidation

Grade	Up to 30 June 2022 (£)	From 1 July 2022 (£)
Partner	980	980
Appointment taking director	-	960
Director (not appointee)	865	915
Assistant director	-	900
Senior Manager	685	860
Manager	595	730
Senior Associate	480	515
	***************************************	

Associate	350	375
Offshore professionals	280	375 - 515
Support staff	160	160

Reflecting the increasingly mobile and flexible nature of the PwC workforce and the narrowing of our London and regional cost bases we have moved to one uniform rate card for our standard restructuring and insolvency services from 1 July 2022. This is in line with other parts of PwC, and is also consistent with wider insolvency market practice. We will continue to have a separate rate card for specialist services including our tax, data and technologist support.

We have a diverse range of experience and capability within our director and senior manager teams. We have created two further grades within this population to reflect different levels of experience. We have differentiated between those directors who take insolvency appointments and lead insolvency cases (thereby providing considerable leverage to our appointment taking partners and reducing overall costs to insolvent estates), and those directors who help to support the delivery of our insolvency strategy. We have also created differential rates in our senior manager team, acknowledging those insolvency qualified and long serving insolvency experienced senior managers separately from those who are not yet insolvency qualified.

Role descriptions applicable to the new rates are below. In addition, as the range of work that may be undertaken by our offshore professional colleagues increases, we also provide updated information for that role.

Title	Description
Appointment taking director	A licensed insolvency practitioner acting as an office holder on the insolvency appointment and subject to additional office-holder responsibilities compared to a Director who is not an appointed office-holder. Highly experienced in insolvency matters at a senior level, including managing complex insolvencies and supervising teams.
Assistant director	Individuals of Senior Manager title but who are highly experienced in insolvency matters and either with more than 10 years insolvency experience at Senior Manager level or are qualified to JIEB level.
Offshore professional	Offshore professional colleagues may provide assistance, albeit that the majority of the work on this case will be undertaken by the UK based team. An off-shore professional at the higher end of the fee bracket generally has appropriate insolvency experience or an accounting qualification, depending on the nature of the work and will assist with planning and control of various aspects of the insolvency. An off-shore professional at the lower end of the fee bracket will typically have a finance-related qualification and appropriate skills to complete basic insolvency related tasks and provide administrative support to the team including efficient document preparation and data entry, records management, and general data analytics. All work under the supervision of more senior staff.

We call on colleagues such as those in our Tax, VAT, Real Estate and Pensions departments where we need their expert advice. We may also utilise Technology Specialists from the wider Business Restructuring Services team or other parts of our firm. Their specialist charge-out rates vary but the following are the maximum rates by grade per hour

Grade	Up to 31 March 2022 (£)	From 1 April 2022 (£)
Partner	1,680	1,810
Director	1,540	1,660
Senior Manager	1,425	1,570
Manager	860	950
Senior Associate / Consultant	640	690
Associate	345	375

Offshore professionals	190	190
Support staff	190	205

In common with many professional firms, our scale rates may rise to cover annual inflationary cost increases.

#### Payments to associates

No payments have been made to associates or any party who could reasonably be perceived as an associate during the period of this report. Relevant parties have been chosen due to their specific area of expertise or technical knowledge and payments to those parties based on standard commercial terms.

#### Our work in the period

Earlier in this section we have included an analysis of the time spent by the various grades of staff. Whilst this is not an exhaustive list, in the following table we provide more detail on the key areas of work.

Area of work	Work undertaken	Why the work was necessary	What, if any, financial benefit the work provided to creditors or whether it was required by statute
Strategy and planning	<ul> <li>Internal team briefings on case progression.</li> </ul>	To ensure orderly management and progression of the case in a cost effective manner.	<ul> <li>Ensures the case progression and case management is being kept in an orderly manner.</li> </ul>
Accounting and treasury	<ul> <li>Periodic bank reconciliations; and</li> <li>Recording receipts, specifically for bank interest.</li> </ul>	To ensure proper management of case funds	Ensures stewardship of the funds falling under our control.
Creditors	Dealing with general creditor enquiries.	To ensure all creditors are kept up to date in relation to the progress of the liquidation.	Ensures all creditors are kept up to date in relation to the progress of the liquidation.
Statutory and compliance	<ul> <li>Regular internal case reviews; and</li> <li>Preparing and circulating the annual report to creditors.</li> </ul>	To comply with statutory and other obligations placed on us.	Required by statute.
Tax	<ul> <li>Preparing and submitting tax returns.</li> </ul>	In compliance with duties as proper officers for tax.	Required by statute.

#### Our future work

We still need to do the following work in the liquidation. We estimate our future costs to be £39,500, largely because we still require to do the following areas of work:

- Complete ongoing statutory and compliance matters until such a time that the CVL can be brought to an end;
- Prepare and submit a final account, and undertake other closure processes such as the closure of our internal systems;
- Obtain formal tax clearance from HMRC;
- Prepare and submit a final VAT 426 to HMRC;
- Continue to liaise with the liquidators of DHDC in order to determine the quantum of the dividend that will be due to the Company; and
- Make further distributions to RBS.

Area of work	Work undertaken	Estimated future costs (£)	Whether or not the work will provide a financial benefit to creditors
Strategy and planning	<ul> <li>Holding team meetings and discussions regarding the status of the liquidation;</li> <li>Clearances from external parties prior to the closure of the liquidation; and</li> <li>Closure of internal systems.</li> </ul>	5,000	No direct financial benefit to creditors except through the avoidance of unnecessary costs. We are expected to perform our functions as quickly and efficiently as possible.
Accounting and treasury	<ul> <li>Dealing with receipts and payments;</li> <li>Making distribution to RBS;</li> <li>Carrying out periodic bank reconciliations; and</li> <li>Closing bank accounts and facilities.</li> </ul>	1,500	No direct financial benefit to creditors. Statutory duty to keep books and records to evidence transactions, assets and liabilities and copy correspondence.
Closure procedures	<ul> <li>Obtaining clearances from third parties; and</li> <li>Preparing our final report to creditors.</li> </ul>	12,000	Enables the orderly wind down of the liquidation.
Creditors	<ul> <li>Receiving and following up creditors enquiries;</li> <li>Reviewing and preparing correspondence to creditors;</li> <li>Responding to RBS' queries; and</li> <li>Making distributions to RBS.</li> </ul>	1,500	<ul> <li>Permits distribution of funds to RBS; and</li> <li>Ensures all creditors are kept up to date with the progress of the liquidation.</li> </ul>
Statutory and compliance	<ul> <li>Drafting and sending out the progress report to creditors and members; and</li> <li>Updating and reviewing case files.</li> </ul>	18,000	Required by statute.

Tax and VAT	<ul> <li>Preparing information for tax team relating to tax computations;</li> </ul>	1,500 ●	Required by statute.
	<ul> <li>Preparation and submission of final tax return to HMRC;</li> </ul>		
	<ul> <li>Liaising with HMRC; and</li> </ul>		
	<ul> <li>Preparing and submission of VAT 426 and VAT clearance.</li> </ul>		

#### Our relationships

We have no business or personal relationships with the parties who approve our fees or who provide services to the liquidation where the relationship could give rise to a conflict of interest.

#### Details of subcontracted work

We have not subcontracted out any work during the period of this report.

#### Legal and other professional firms

We instructed the following professionals on this case:

Service provided	Name of firm/organisation	Reason selected	Basis of fees
Storage of books and records	Iron Mountain (UK) Limited	Facilities available	<ul> <li>Industry rates</li> </ul>
Photocopying	Mitie	Facilities available	Unit price

## Appendix D: Other information

Company's registered name:	Parkridge Holdings Limited – in Liquidation	
Trading name:	Parkridge Holdings Limited – in Liquidation	
Registered number:	06064315	
Registered address:	PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Central Square, 29 Wellington Street, Leeds, LS1 4DL	
Date of the Liquidators' appointment:	28 March 2012	
Liquidators' names, addresses and contact details:	David Robert Baxendale and David Matthew Hammond both of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Cornwall Court, 19 Cornwall Street, Birmingham, B3 2DT	
	Contact: matthew.j.duckworth@pwc.com	
Details of change in liquidators:	David Robert Baxendale replaced Robert Jonathan Hunt on 8 November 2016	
Details of prior administration:	Robert Jonathan Hunt and David Matthew Hammond were appointed as administrators of Parkridge Holdings Limited on 24 August 2011	
Estimated dividend for preferential creditors:	Preferential creditors have been paid in full. Total claims amounted to £23,844.80	
Estimated dividend for unsecured creditors:	Unsecured creditors have benefitted from the maximum prescribed part of £600,000. A first and final dividend of 1.91 p in the £ was paid on 28 January 2014 to those whose claims had been admitted.	
	It is not anticipated that any other distribution to unsecured creditors will be possible.	
Estimates values of the Company's net property and prescribed part:	Net property: £3 million Prescribed part: £600,000 (maximum, before costs)	
Whether and why the liquidators intend to apply to court under Section 176A(5) IA86:	N/A	